
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 23 September 2019

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a TfGM Bus Passenger Access Enhancements (Pages 1 - 8)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

5a Princes Park Garden Centre (Pages 9 - 10)

5b Ordsall Development Sites (Pages 11 - 12)

6  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 

TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 
ON 9TH SEPTEMBER 2019 FOR BRIEFING AND 

ON 23RD SEPTEMBER 2019 FOR DECISION

TITLE: BUS PASSENGER ACCESS ENHANCEMENT

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the City Mayor 

1)       Gives approval to enter into a S278 agreement with TfGM, and
 

2) Authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with the S151 officer to 
draft and approve the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) between Salford City 
Council, Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

TfGM wish to enter into a S278 agreement with the City Council to facilitate the 
delivery of the works on Salford’s Highway network. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
- Growth Deal – Minor Works – Mini Business Case Bus Passenger Access 

Enhancements 
- GM Transport Strategy 2040

KEY DECISION: YES 

DETAILS: 

1.0    Introduction and Background

1.1 Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) have secured £3.3m of Growth Deal 
3 (GD3) funding for a Bus Passenger Enhancement Project, that will upgrade 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



2

67 existing Bus Stops in Salford (see Appendix A) and a total of 505 across the 
whole Greater Manchester.

1.2 The aim of the Bus Passenger Enhancement Project is to improve the 
passenger experience delivering improved journey times for buses, whilst 
ensuring that the facilities are compliant with accessibility standards.

1.3 The project has been developed in support of Transport Steering Group’s (TSG) 
priority of providing, improved bus priority measures on key commuter routes”

1.4 The project is also closely aligned to the Greater Manchester Transport 
Strategy 2040, in particular the key principle of developing a fully inclusive 
transport system that enables everyone in Greater Manchester to access a 
range of employment, training, health and leisure opportunities.

1.5 All the identified Bus Stop locations have been assessed in line with GD3 
objectives of supporting growth by;

 Unlocking Major Development Sites
 Addressing congestion in Key Growth locations & on the public transport 

network and 
 Supporting regeneration in key town centres

1.6 A ‘pilot’ initiative is to be conducted across the 67 bus stops identified in Salford. 
The bus stop upgrades in Salford will be the first time TfGM delivers works on 
behalf of a local authority, and is therefore, considered a ‘pilot’.

1.7 Salford was chosen as the ‘pilot’ as at the time, all bus stop survey work had 
been completed by the Project Team and Salford also forms a complete 
corridor, which is identified in the GD3 Monitoring and Evaluation Approach as a 
way of measuring the success of the project.

1.8 The upgrades as proposed are very similar in their output to those being 
implemented on the SBNI project and are in addition to those works being 
undertaken.

2.0    Details

1.9 What Bus Stop Enhancements will be made and where

1.10 The bus stop upgrades will include (where applicable), raised kerbs to 160mm, 
upgraded bus stop platforms, the provision of a clearway & plates, and 
replacement of bus stop poles and plates.

1.11 Footway treatment (in line with the TfGM Bus Stop Design Guide and Local 
Authority Design Specification) will be applied to stops on high quality bus stop 
network routes, any platforms not receiving the above footway treatment will 

Page 2



3

require reinstatement to match the existing surface. As a result of the raised bus 
platform, bus stop shelters will also need to be raised to an adequate level. 

1.12 The introduction of bus stop clearways will reduce the number of instances in 
which buses are unable to fully dock against the kerb, which would negate the 
level boarding provided by a 160mm kerb height. The clearways will be active 
during all operating hours of the services using the stop. A clearway plate will 
also be installed if there is currently no plate at the relevant stop. 

1.13 All poles will be replaced, along with plates which require an upgrade, these 
upgrades to poles and plates are essential in supporting the main enhancement 
works which generate time saving benefits. 

1.14 The Bus Stop enhancements are being undertaken at 67 locations in Salford, 
with a 8 further locations identified as reserve schemes, which are across six 
wards.  A plan showing the location of the Bus Stop locations can be found in 
Appendix A, with a summary of the number of locations per Ward below, with 
the number of reserve schemes in brackets;

 Weaste and Seedley = 21
 Eccles = 2
 Langworthy = 14
 Irwell Riverside = 5 (1)
 Broughton = 22 (3)
 Ordsall = 3 (4)

1.15 The cost of the Bus Stop enhancements has been estimated by TfGM at 
£434,000 at no cost to Salford City Council, with all associated costs being 
covered by the Growth Deal Fund.

1.16 What measures are need to be in place to allow TfGM to deliver the works 
on Salford highway and Why

1.17 It has been discussed and agreed with officers that a S278 agreement is 
required in order for the proposed designs of the Bus Stop Enhancement to be 
reviewed and approved by Urban Vision partnership limited on Salford Councils 
behalf so as to the works are designed and delivered in compliance with local 
Highway Authority standards.

1.18 It will also be necessary for Salford City Council, Transport for Greater 
Manchester and Greater Manchester Combined Authority to enter into a Grant 
Funding Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, Transport for Greater 
Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA.

Page 3



4

1.19 The delivery agreement will enable the grant funding for the works to be spent 
by TfGM and then reclaimed from Salford City Council who can cover all costs 
for the works by drawing down on the Grant Fund from GMCA.

3.0    Next Steps

1.20 That the City Mayor 1) gives approval to enter into a S278 agreement with 
TfGM, and 2) Delegates Authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation 
with the S151 officer to draft and approve the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) 
between Salford City Council, Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA)

1.21 TfGM have stated that they would like to commence construction activities in 
September 2019

4.0    Consultation

1.22 The Lead Member for Sustainable Development and the Executive Support for 
Transport have been briefed on the proposals contained within this report 

1.23 The Wards to which the proposed works will take place are noted in paragraph 
2.6, with the corresponding Ward Councillors briefed of the proposals.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

The Great 8:
3 – Health and Social Care
6 - Transport

-  Transport in Salford 2025  
-  Local Transport Plan 
-  Local Road Safety Strategy  
-  Sustainable Transport Strategy

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323
Date: 2.08.19

Page 4



5

Legal Services will be happy to assist in advising on, and drafting, the section 278 
agreement referred to, to ensure works on the highway are delivered in accordance 
with its requirements.  Similarly, upon receipt to ensure the Council’s interests are 
protected, Legal Services will ensure that the grant funding agreement referred to in 
the body of the report protects the Council’s interests, including any claw back and 
other compliance provisions, whilst reflecting and ensuring compliance with the 
Growth Deal 3 arrangements where necessary. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Supplied by: Natalie Birchall
Date:  1st August 2019

The purpose of this report is to inform the City Mayor, that TfGM are intending on 
entering into a S278 agreement with the City Council and that a delivery agreement 
is required. 

As such, at this stage there are no financial implications for the city council. Following 
approval of the Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA, further DDN’s will be 
required to approve spend.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

Supplied by: Jennifer Hilton, Category Manager, x.6241
Date: 1st August 2019

There are no procurement comments.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Matthew Mollart TEL NO: 779 6184

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Eccles, Weaste & Seedley, Ordsall, 
Langworthy, Irwell Riverside and Broughton 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Growth Deal 3 – Bus Passenger Access Enhancements 67(8) bus stop locations within the district of Salford

Potential 
Reserve Stop (8)

Legend

Stop location of 
Main Works (67)

High Frequency 
Bus Route

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:
Princes Park Garden Centre

Committee:
 Property/Regeneration Briefing
Date: 23rd October 2019

Category of exemption applied: 
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person, including the Authority holding that information.

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Page 9

Agenda Item 5a



Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

Yes

Justification of decision

The report contains financial and contractual information which should remain 
exempt in accordance Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Kerry Thornley, Integrated Commissioning Manager

Date: 13th September 2019

Page 10



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:
Ordsall Development Sites

Committee:
 Property/Regeneration Briefing
Date: 23rd September 2019

Category of exemption applied: 
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person, including the Authority holding that information.

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

Yes

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Page 11

Agenda Item 5b



Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

Yes

Justification of decision

The report contains financial and contractual information which should remain 
exempt in accordance Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Peter Openshaw, Assistant Director for Environment and Community Safety

Date: 13th September 2019

Page 12


	Agenda
	3a TfGM Bus Passenger Access Enhancements
	03aii TfGM Bus Access Enhancements

	5a Princes Park Garden Centre
	5b Ordsall Development Sites

